
 

Rother District Council 
 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, Braille, 
audiotape/CD or in another language upon request. 

For all enquiries please contact 
louise.hollingsworth@rother.gov.uk 

Tel: 01424 787815 
Rother District Council aspiring to deliver… 

an Efficient, Flexible and Effective Council, Sustainable Economic Prosperity, 
Stronger, Safer Communities and a Quality Physical Environment 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 
 

Date and Time - Wednesday 29 July 2020 - 6.30pm 
 

Venue - Remote Meeting 
 

 
Councillors appointed to the Committee: 
A.K. Jeeawon (Chairman), J. Barnes, Mrs M.L. Barnes, K.M. Harmer, 
Mrs E.M. Kirby-Green, L.M. Langlands, Rev H.J. Norton and R.B. Thomas. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.   MINUTES   

 To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting, at a later date, 
of the Audit and Standards Committee held on the 22 June 2020 as a correct 
record of the proceedings. 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS   

 To consider such other items as the Chairman decides are urgent and due 
notice of which has been given to the Head of Paid Service by 12 Noon on 
the day of the meeting. 

 

4.   DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS   

 To receive any disclosure by Members of personal and disclosable pecuniary 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and whether the 
Member regards the personal interest as prejudicial under the terms of the 
Code of Conduct.  Members are reminded of the need to repeat their 
declaration immediately prior to the commencement of the item in question. 

 

PART A - STANDARDS REPORTS 

5.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) - MODEL MEMBER CODE 
OF CONDUCT - CONSULTATION  (Pages 1 - 22) 

 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:louise.hollingsworth@rother.gov.uk


 
 

(Enquiries – please ask for Louise Hollingsworth Tel: 01424 787815) 

PART B - AUDIT REPORTS 

6.   TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT - 2019/20 OUTTURN  (Pages 23 - 
30) 

7.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019/20  (Pages 31 - 120) 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 121 - 122) 

 
 

Malcolm Johnston 
Executive Director Agenda Despatch Date: 21 July 2020 
 
 
Invitees in respect of Standards Related Reports only:  
 
Independent Persons: Mrs Rose Durban, Mrs Susan Fellows and Mrs Jan Gray. 
 
Parish/Town Councillor Representatives: Councillors Mrs W.M. Miers and D. 
Smedley.



AS200729 – LGA CoC 

Rother District Council  
 
Report to:    Audit and Standards Committee      
 
Date:                        29 July 2020 
 
Title:  Local Government Association (LGA) – Model Member 

Code of Conduct – consultation 
 
Report of:   Lisa Cooper, Monitoring Officer 
 
Purpose of Report: To consider the LGA’s model Member Code of Conduct 

and to agree this Council’s response to the consultation.  
Officer 
Recommendation(s): That this Council’s response to the LGA’s consultation on 

the model Code of Conduct as set out at Appendix 2 be 
agreed and shared with East Sussex County Council.  

 
 

Introduction 
 

1. As reported in June 2019, Members may recall that one of the outcomes of the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life’s (CSPL) report into local government 
ethical standards was a recommendation that an updated model Code of 
Conduct (CoC) be created.      
 

2. The CSPL consider that a model CoC will create consistency across England 
and reflect the common expectations of the public regardless of geography or 
tier.  It will also reduce the potential for confusion among dual-hatted or triple-
hatted councillors.   
 

3. The Local Government Association (LGA) was tasked with creating an updated 
model CoC, in consultation with representative bodies of councillors and officers 
of all tiers of local government.  The LGA have now launched a consultation 
which runs until 17 August 2020 and all Members were sent the link on 22 June 
2020 and invited to submit comments to me by 3 July for inclusion within this 
report. The Council’s Independent Persons were also invited to comment on the 
draft and their comments have been incorporated into the proposed response. 
 

4. As you may also be aware, since 2011 the borough, district and county councils 
in East Sussex have adopted broadly similar codes of conduct. This level of 
consistency has worked well and been of particular benefit to dual hatted 
councillors. In order to maintain the current consistency, I will be sharing this 
Council’s response to the consultation with my counterpart in East Sussex 
County Council.   
 

5. This report does not seek to compare our current CoC with this model, merely to 
comment on the model.  Following the close of the consultation and the issue of 
a final model CoC by the LGA, the Council can consider whether to adopt a new 
CoC, using the final LGA national model as a starting point.  

 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



AS200729 – LGA CoC 

Comment  
 

6. The model CoC aims to be concise, written in plain English and be 
understandable to Members, officers and the public.  It is designed to aid 
Members in all tiers of local government model the behaviours and high 
standards that anyone would expect from a person holding public office.  Equally, 
it articulates behaviour which falls below the standards that would be expected 
of Council Members. It is designed to help set a framework for public and 
councillor interaction, emphasising the importance of civility.  A copy of the model 
CoC is attached at Appendix 1.  

 

7. The consultation is being conducted by way of a questionnaire and this Council’s 
suggested response is set out at Appendix 2 for Members’ consideration.   

 

Conclusion 
 

8. Members are invited to consider the model CoC and agree the suggested 
response to the consultation set out at Appendix 2.  The feedback from the 
consultation will help the LGA develop a final draft, which will be reviewed by the 
LGA’s Executive Advisory Board before being presented to the next LGA General 
Assembly, which is hoped will be held in the Autumn of 2020. 
 

9. A further report will be made to the Committee in December 2020 when 
consideration will be given to the final model CoC and whether or not this Council 
should introduce a new CoC of conduct based on the model CoC.  

 
Other Implications Applies? Other Implications Applies? 

Human Rights No Equalities and Diversity No 

Crime and Disorder No Consultation No 

Environmental No Access to Information No 

Sustainability No Exempt from publication No 

Risk Management No   

 

Executive Director: Malcolm Johnston 

Proper Officer: Malcolm Johnston, Head of Paid Service 

Report Contact 
Officer: 

Lisa Cooper, Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring 
Officer 

e-mail address: lisa.cooper@rother.gov.uk  

Appendices: 1 Model Member Code of Conduct 
2 Proposed Response 
   

Relevant Previous 
Minutes: 
 

Audit and Standards Committee – 19 June 2019 - AS19/06 
Audit and Standards Committee – 19 December 2019 - AS19/34 

Background Papers: None. 
 

Reference 
Documents: 

None. 

 

Page 2

mailto:lisa.cooper@rother.gov.uk


1          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Local 
Government 
Association  
Model Member 
Code of Conduct

Consultation
Page 3



CLLr

The Local Government Association (LGA) is providing this Model Member Code of  Conduct as 
part of  its work on supporting the sector to continue to aspire to high standards of  leadership 
and performance.

The role of  councillor in all tiers of  local government is a vital part of  our country’s system of  
democracy. In voting for a local councillor, the public is imbuing that person and position with 
their trust. As such, it is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all adopt 
the behaviours and responsibilities associated with the role. The conduct of  an individual 
councillor affects the reputation of  all councillors. We want the role of  councillor to be one that 
people aspire to and want to participate with. We want to continue to attract individuals from a 
range of  backgrounds and circumstances who understand the responsibility they take on and 
are motivated to make a positive difference to their local communities.

All councils are required to have a local Member Code of  Conduct. This Model Member Code 
of  Conduct has been developed in consultation with the sector and is offered as a template for 
councils to adopt in whole and/or with local amendments. The LGA will undertake an annual 
review of  the Code to ensure it continues to be fit-for-purpose, particularly with respect to 
advances in technology, social media and any relevant changes in legislation. The LGA can 
also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the application of  the 
Code, whilst the National Association of  Local Councils (NALC) and the county associations of  
local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish councils. 

As a councillor we all represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver 
local change. The public have high expectations of  us and entrust us to represent everyone 
(in our ward/town/parish), taking decisions fairly, openly, transparently and with civility. 
Councillors should also be treated with civility by members of  the public, other councillors 
and council employees. Members have both individual and collective responsibility to 
maintain these standards, support expected behaviour and challenge behaviour which falls 
below expectations. This Code, therefore, has been designed to protect our democratic role, 
encourage good conduct and safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

Introduction

Councillor Howard Sykes MBE 
Leader, LGA Liberal Democrats Group

Councillor Marianne Overton MBE 
Leader, LGA independent Group

Councillor Izzi Seccombe OBE 
Leader, LGA Conservative Group

Councillor Nick Forbes CBE 
Leader, LGA Labour Group

Page 4



3          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

CLLr

Purpose
The purpose of  this Code of  Conduct 
is to assist councillors in modelling the 
behaviour that is expected of  them, to 
provide a personal check and balance, 
and to set out the type of  conduct against 
which appropriate action may be taken. It 
is also to protect yourself, the public, fellow 
councillors, council officers and the reputation 
of  local government. It sets out the conduct 
expected of  all members and a minimum 
set of  obligations relating to conduct. The 
overarching aim is to create and maintain 
public confidence in the role of  member  
and local government.

Application of  the Code
The Code of  Conduct applies to you when 
you are acting [or claiming or giving the 
impression that you are acting]1 in [public 
or in]2 your capacity as a member or 
representative of  your council, although you 
are expected to uphold high standards of  
conduct and show leadership at all times. 
The Code applies to all forms of  member 
communication and interaction, including 
written, verbal, non-verbal, electronic and 
via social media, [including where you could 
be deemed to be representing your council 
or if  there are potential implications for the 
council’s reputation.] Model conduct and 
expectations is for guidance only, whereas the 
specific obligations set out instances where 
action will be taken.

The seven principles  
of  public life
Everyone in public office at all levels – 
ministers, civil servants, members, council 
officers – all who serve the public or deliver 
public services should uphold the seven 
principles of  public life. This Code has been 
developed in line with these seven principles 
of  public life, which are set out in appendix A. 

Model member conduct
In accordance with the public trust placed in 
me, on all occasions I will:

• act with integrity and honesty

• act lawfully

• treat all persons with civility; and 

• lead by example and act in a way that 
secures public confidence in the office 
of  councillor

In undertaking my role, I will:

• impartially exercise my responsibilities  
in the interests of  the local community 

• not improperly seek to confer an 
advantage, or disadvantage, on any person

• avoid conflicts of  interest

• exercise reasonable care and diligence; 
and

• ensure that public resources are used 
prudently and in the public interest

Specific obligations  
of  general conduct 
This section sets out the minimum 
requirements of  member conduct. Guidance 
is included to help explain the reasons for the 
obligations and how they should be followed. 
These obligations must be observed in all 
situations where you act [or claim or give the 
impression that you are acting] as a councillor 
[or in public], including representing your 
council on official business and when using 
social media.

Page 5



4          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

As a councillor I commit to:

Civility 
1. Treating other councillors and  

members of the public with civility. 

2. Treating council employees, employees 
and representatives of partner 
organisations and those volunteering 
for the councils with civility and 
respecting the role that they play. 

Civility means politeness and courtesy in 
behaviour, speech, and in the written word. 
Debate and having different views are all part 
of  a healthy democracy. As a councillor you 
can express, challenge, criticise and disagree 
with views, ideas, opinions and policies 
in a civil manner. You should not subject 
individuals, groups of  people or organisations 
to unreasonable or excessive personal attack.

In your contact with the public you should 
treat them courteously. Rude and offensive 
behaviour lowers the public’s expectations 
and confidence in its elected representatives. 

In return you have a right to expect courtesy 
from the public. If  members of  the public are 
being abusive, threatening or intimidatory you 
are entitled to close down any conversation 
in person or online, refer them to the council, 
any social media provider or if  necessary, the 
police. This also applies to members, where 
action could then be taken under the Member 
Code of  Conduct.

Bullying and harassment 
3. Not bullying or harassing any person. 

Bullying may be characterised as offensive, 
intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, 
an abuse or misuse of  power through means 
that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or 
injure the recipient. The bullying might be 
a regular pattern of  behaviour or a one-off  
incident, happen face-to-face, on social 
media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the 
workplace or at work social events and not 
always be obvious or noticed by others. 

The Equality Act 2010 defines harassment 
as ‘unwanted conduct related to a relevant 
protected characteristic, which has the 
purpose or effect of  violating an individual’s 
dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, 
degrading, humiliating or offensive 
environment for that individual’. The relevant 
protected characteristics are age, disability, 
gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, 
sex, and sexual orientation.

Impartiality of  officers  
of  the council
4. Not compromising, or attempting to 

compromise, the impartiality of anyone 
who works for, or on behalf of, the 
council. 

Officers work for the council as a whole 
and must be politically neutral (unless they 
are political assistants). They should not be 
coerced or persuaded to act in a way that 
would undermine their neutrality. Although you 
can question officers in order to understand, 
for example, their reasons for proposing to 
act in a particular way, or the content of  a 
report that they have written, you must not try 
and force them to act differently, change their 
advice, or alter the content of  that report, if  
doing so would prejudice their professional 
integrity.

Confidentiality and  
access to information
5. Not disclosing information given to me 

in confidence or disclosing information 
acquired by me which I believe is of 
a confidential nature, unless I have 
received the consent of a person 
authorised to give it or I am required  
by law to do so.

6. Not preventing anyone getting 
information that they are entitled  
to by law.

Local authorities must work openly and 
transparently, and their proceedings and 

Page 6



5          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

printed materials are open to the public 
except in certain circumstances. You should 
work on this basis but there will be times 
when it is required by law that discussions, 
documents and other information relating 
to or held by the council are treated in a 
confidential manner. Examples include 
personal data relating to individuals or 
information relating to ongoing negotiations. 

Disrepute
7. Not bringing my role or council  

into disrepute. 

Behaviour that is considered dishonest 
and/or deceitful can bring your council into 
disrepute. As a member you have been 
entrusted to make decisions on behalf  of  your 
community and your actions and behaviour 
are subject to greater scrutiny than that of  
ordinary members of  the public. You should 
be aware that your actions might have an 
adverse impact on other councillors and/or 
your council. 

Your position 
8. Not using, or attempting to use,  

my position improperly to the 
advantage or disadvantage of myself  
or anyone else.

Your position as a member of  the council 
provides you with certain opportunities, 
responsibilities and privileges. However, 
you should not take advantage of  these 
opportunities to further private interests. 

Use of  council resources 
and facilities
9. Not misusing council resources. 

You may be provided with resources and 
facilities by the council to assist you in 
carrying out your duties as a councillor. 
Examples include office support, stationery 
and equipment such as phones, and 
computers and transport. These are given 

to you to help you carry out your role as a 
councillor more effectively and not to benefit 
you personally. 

Interests
10. Registering and declaring my interests.

You need to register your interests so that 
the public, council employees and fellow 
members know which of  your interests might 
give rise to a conflict of  interest. The register 
is a document that can be consulted when (or 
before) an issue arises, and so allows others 
to know what interests you have, and whether 
they might give rise to a possible conflict of  
interest. The register also protects you. You 
are responsible for deciding whether or not 
you should declare an interest in a meeting, 
but it can be helpful for you to know early on 
if  others think that a potential conflict might 
arise. 

It is also important that the public know 
about any interest that might have to be 
declared by you or other members, so that 
decision making is seen by the public as 
open and honest. This helps to ensure that 
public confidence in the integrity of  local 
governance is maintained. Discuss the 
registering and declaration of  interests with 
your Monitoring Officer/Town or Parish Clerk 
and more detail is set out in appendix B.

Gifts and hospitality 
11. Not accepting significant gifts or 

hospitality from persons seeking to 
acquire, develop or do business with 
the council or from persons who may 
apply to the council for any permission, 
licence or other significant advantage. 

12. Registering with the monitoring officer 
any gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25 within 28 days of 
its receipt.

You should exercise caution in accepting 
any gifts or hospitality which are (or which 
you reasonably believe to be) offered to you 

Page 7



6          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

because you are a member. However, you 
do not need to register gifts and hospitality 
which are not related to your role as a 
member, such as Christmas gifts from your 
friends and family, or gifts which you do not 
accept. However, you may wish to notify your 
monitoring officer of  any significant gifts you 
are offered but refuse which you think may 
have been offered to influence you.

Breaches of  the  
Code of  Conduct
Most councillors conduct themselves 
appropriately and in accordance with these 
standards. Members have both individual 
and collective responsibility to maintain these 
standards, support expected behaviour 
and challenge behaviour which falls below 
expectations.

Section 27 of  the Localism Act 2011 requires 
relevant authorities to promote and maintain 
high standards of  conduct by members and 
co-opted members of  the authority. Each local 
authority must publish a code of  conduct, 
and it must cover the registration of  pecuniary 
interests, the role of  an ‘independent 
person’, and sanctions to be imposed on any 
councillors who breach the Code. 

The 2011 Act also requires local authorities 
to have mechanisms in place to investigate 
allegations that a member has not complied 
with the Code of  Conduct, and arrangements 
under which decisions on allegation may be 
made. 

Failure to comply with the requirements to 
register or declare disclosable pecuniary 
interests is a criminal offence. Taking part in 
a meeting or voting, when prevented from 
doing so by a conflict caused by disclosable 
pecuniary interests, is also a criminal offence. 

Political parties may have its own internal 
standards and resolution procedures in 
addition to the Member Code of  Conduct  
that members should be aware of.

Note – items in square brackets [x] refer to 
recommendations made by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life and may be part of  a 
future Government consultation. This includes 
possible future sanctions and appeals 
processes.

Page 8



7          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Example  
LGA guidance and  
recommendations
Internal resolution 
procedure
Councils must have in place an internal 
resolution procedure to address conduct that 
is in breach of  the Member Code of  Conduct. 
The internal resolution process should 
make it clear how allegations of  breaches 
of  the Code of  Conduct are to be handled, 
including the role of  an Independent Person, 
the appeals process and can also include 
a local standards committee. The internal 
resolution procedure should be proportionate, 
allow for members to appeal allegations and 
decisions, and allow for an escalating scale 
of  intervention. The procedure should be 
voted on by the council as a whole.

In the case of  a non-criminal breach of  the 
Code, the following escalating approach can 
be undertaken. 

If  the breach is confirmed and of  a serious 
nature, action can be automatically escalated. 

1. an informal discussion with the monitoring 
officer or appropriate senior officer

2. an informal opportunity to speak with  
the affected party/ies

3. a written apology

4. mediation

5. peer support

6. requirement to attend relevant training

7. where of  a serious nature, a bar on 
chairing advisory or special committees 
for up to two months

8. where of  a serious nature, a bar on 
attending committees for up to two 
months.

Where serious misconduct affects an 
employee, a member may be barred from 
contact with that individual; or if  it relates to a 
specific responsibility of  the council, barred 
from participating in decisions or information 
relating to that responsibility.

Page 9



8          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Endnotes
1. CSPL recommend that “Section 27(2) 

of  the Localism Act 2011 should 
be amended to state that a local 
authority’s code of  conduct applies to 
a member when they claim to act, or 
give the impression they are acting, 
in their capacity as a member or as a 
representative of  the local authority”. 

2. CSPL recommend that “councillors should 
be presumed to be acting in an official 
capacity in their public conduct, including 
statements on publicly accessible social 
media. Section 27(2) of  the Localism Act 
2011 should be amended to permit local 
authorities to presume so when deciding 
upon code of  conduct breaches.”

3. Subject to footnotes 1 and 2 above

4. See CSPL website for further details  
www.gov.uk/government/news/the-
principles-of-public-life-25-years

5.  ACAS’s definition of  bullying

Page 10



9          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Code Appendix A 
The principles are :

Selflessness
Holders of  public office should act solely  
in terms of  the public interest.

Integrity
Holders of  public office must avoid placing 
themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to 
influence them in their work. They should not 
act or take decisions in order to gain financial 
or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and 
resolve any interests and relationships.

Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take 
decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability
Holders of  public office are accountable to 
the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny 
necessary to ensure this.

Openness
Holders of  public office should act and take  
decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from 
the public unless there are clear and lawful 
reasons for so doing.

Honesty
Holders of  public office should be truthful.

Leadership
Holders of  public office should exhibit these 
principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and be willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occurs.

Code Appendix B
Registering interests
1. Within 28 days of  this Code of  Conduct 

being adopted by the council or your 
election or appointment to office (where 
that is later) you must register with the 
Monitoring Officer the interests which 
fall within the categories set out in Table 
1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) and 
Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 

2. You must ensure that your register of  
interests is kept up-to-date and within 
28 days of  becoming aware of  any 
new interest in Table 1 or 2, or of  any 
change to a registered interest, notify the 
Monitoring Officer. 

Declaring interests 
3. Where a matter arises at a meeting 

which directly relates to an interest in 
Table 1, you must declare the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote 
on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless granted a dispensation. If  it 
is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
declare the nature of  the interest.

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which 
directly relates to an interest in Table 2, 
you must declare the interest. You may 
speak on the matter only if  members of  
the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part 
in any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain in the room unless 
you have been granted a dispensation. If  
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have 
to declare the nature of  the interest.

Appendices

Page 11



10          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

5. Where a matter arises at a meeting which 
directly relates to your financial interest 
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest) or a financial interest 
or well-being of  a relative or close 
associate, you must declare the interest. 
You may speak on the matter only if  
members of  the public are also allowed 
to speak at the meeting but otherwise 
must not take part in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in 
the room unless you have been granted a 
dispensation. If  it is a ‘sensitive interest’, 
you do not have to declare the nature of  
the interest.

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which 
affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of  a 
friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a body covered by table 1 below 

you must disclose the interest.

7. Where the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being to a greater extent 
than it affects the financial interests of  
the majority of  inhabitants of  the ward 
affected by the decision and a reasonable 
member of  the public knowing all the 
facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of  the wider public interest you 
must declare the interest. You may speak 
on the matter only if  members of  the 
public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part 
in any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain in the room unless 
you have been granted a dispensation. If  
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have 
to declare the nature of  the interest.

Page 12



11          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit  
or gain. 

[Any unpaid directorship.]

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of  any other financial benefit (other than from the 
council) made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for 
expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, 
or towards his/her election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of  the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992.

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner 
or the person with whom the councillor is living as if  they were spouses/civil 
partners (or a firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of  which such person is a director* or a body that such person has a 
beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council —

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or  works are to be 
executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of  the council.

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land 
which does not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as if  they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy or to receive 
income.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of  the 
council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner 
or the person with whom the councillor is living as if  they were spouses/
civil partners is a partner of  or a director* of  or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of  a body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has a place of  business or 
land in the area of  the council; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of  the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of  the total issued share capital of  that body; or

(ii) if  the share capital of  that body is of  more than one class, the total 
nominal value of  the shares of  any one class in which the councillor, or his/
her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living 
as if  they were spouses/civil partners has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of  the total issued share capital of  that class.

Page 13



12          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

*’director’ includes a member of  the committee of  management of  an industrial and provident 
society.

*’securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of  a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of  the Financial Services and Markets Act 
2000 and other securities of  any description, other than money deposited with a building 
society.

Table 2: Other Registerable Interests 

Any Body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to 
which you are appointed or nominated by the council;

Any Body— (a) exercising functions of  a public nature;

(b) directed to charitable purposes; or

(c) one of  whose principal purposes includes the influence of  public 
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 

of  which you are a member or in a position of  general control or management. 

Page 14



Page 15



Local Government Association 
18 Smith Square 
London SW1P 3HZ

Telephone 020 7664 3000 
Fax 020 7664 3030 
Email info@local.gov.uk 
www.local.gov.uk

For a copy in Braille, larger print or audio,  
please contact us on 020 7664 3000. 
We consider requests on an individual basis. 
 
REF 11.197

© Local Government Association, May 2020 

Page 16



AS200729 – LGA CoC 
 

Appendix 2 
 
LGA Consultation on Draft Model Member Code of Conduct  
  
Consultation Questionnaire  
  
Application of the Code        
 
Under the Localism Act 2012, the Code of Conduct applies to councillors only when they are 
acting in their capacity as a member. The LGA believes that because councillors are elected 
by the public and widely recognised by the public, it makes sense for them to continue to 
model these behaviours when they are making public comment, are identifying as a 
councillor and when it would be reasonable for the public to identify them as acting or 
speaking as a councillor. The Committee on Standards in Public Life supported this 
approach in their report into Local Government Ethical Standards. Whilst the LGA is waiting 
for Government’s response to these recommendations the option has been added in square 
brackets as it would need changes in legislation.   
  
Q1. To what extent do you support the proposal that councillors demonstrate the 
behaviours set out in the Code when they are publicly acting as, identifying as, and/or 
giving the impression that they are acting as a councillor, including when 
representing their council on official business and when using social media?  
 

o To a great extent 
o To a moderate extent   
o To a small extent   
o Not at all   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

   
Q1a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here: 
 
This Council’s current Code already applies when Members conduct the business of the 
authority or act, claim to act or give the impression they are acting as a representative of the 
authority.  The inclusion of the use of social media accounts is welcome. 
 
Q2. Is it sufficiently clear which parts of the Model Code are legal requirements, which 
are obligations, and which are guidance?  
 

o Yes (+ relevant training)  
o No   
o Don't know   

  
Q3. Do you prefer the use of the personal tense, as used in the Code, or would you 
prefer the passive tense?  
 

o Personal tense (“I will”)    
o Passive tense (“Councillors should”)   
o No preference   

  
Specific obligations        
 
The Code lists 12 specific obligations – these set out a minimum standard councillors are 
asked to adhere to.    
 
Each obligation or group of obligations is put into a wider context to explain why that 
particular obligation is important.  
  
  

Page 17



AS200729 – LGA CoC 
 

Q4. To what extent to you support the 12 specific obligations?  
   

 To a 
great 
extent 

To a 
moderate 
extent 

To a 
small 
extent 

Not at all Don't 
know / 
Prefer 
not to 
say 

1. Treating other councillors and 
members of the public with 
civility.   

     

2. Treating council employees, 
employees and representatives 
of partner organisations and 
those volunteering for the 
councils with civility and 
respecting the role that they 
play.   

     

3. Not bullying or harassing any 
person.   

     

4. Not compromising, or 
attempting to compromise, the 
impartiality of anyone who 
works for, or on behalf of, the 
council.   

     

5. Not disclosing information 
given to me in confidence or 
disclosing information acquired 
by me which I believe is of a 
confidential nature, unless I 
have received the consent of a 
person authorised to give it or I 
am required by law to do so.   

     

6. Not preventing anyone 
getting information that they are 
entitled to by law.   

     

7. Not bringing my role or 
council into disrepute.   

     

8. Not using, or attempting to 
use, my position improperly to 
the advantage or disadvantage 
of myself or anyone else.   

     

9. Not misusing council 
resources.   

     

10. Registering and declaring 
my interests.   

     

11. Not accepting significant 
gifts or hospitality from persons 
seeking to acquire, develop or 
do business with the council or 
from persons who may apply to 
the council for any permission, 
licence or other significant 
advantage.   

     

12. Registering with the 
monitoring officer any gift or 
hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25 within 28 
days of its receipt.   

     

Page 18



AS200729 – LGA CoC 
 

 
Q5. If you would like to propose additional or alternative obligations, or would like to 
provide more comment on a specific obligation, please do so here:  
 
Obligation 2 – to additionally reference community groups – Council to be singular, not 
plural. 
 
Obligation 3 – to ensure that all protected characteristics are included in the guidance 
(marriage and civil partnership and pregnancy and maternity not currently listed). 
 
Obligation 5 – specific reference to safeguarding obligations to be included here to be more 
explicit. 
 
Obligation 7 – might usually include a reference to also having a potential reputational 
impact on the ward you represent. 
 
Obligation 11 – would be helpful to clarify “significant” in local code / guidance.  [Currently 
RDC code requires the registration of gifts or hospitality with an estimated value of £50 – 
Members have previously considered that this amount is too high and will be reviewed as 
part of any review / adoption of a new Code]. 
  
Q6. Would you prefer to see the obligations as a long list followed by the guidance, or 
as it is set out in the current draft, with the guidance after each obligation?  
 

o As a list   
o Each specific obligation followed by its relevant guidance    
o No preference   

   
Q7. To what extent to you think the concept of ‘acting with civility’ is sufficiently 
clear?   
 

o To a great extent   
o To a moderate extent   
o To a small extent   
o Not at all   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

   
Q7a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the same 
meaning, or would like to provide a comment on this concept, please do so here:    
 
“With civility and respect”. 
 
Q8. To what extent do you think the concept of ‘bringing the council into disrepute’ is 
sufficiently clear?  
 

o To a great extent   
o To a moderate extent   
o To a small extent   
o Not at all   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q8a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the same 
meaning, or would like to provide a comment on this concept, please do so here:  
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________  

Page 19



AS200729 – LGA CoC 
 

  
Q9. To what extent do you support the definition of bullying and harassment used in 
the code in a local government context?  
 

o To a great extent   
o To a moderate extent 
o To a small extent   
o Not at all   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q9a. If there are other definitions you would like to recommend, please provide them 
here.  
 
All the protected characteristics need to be included in the guidance (marriage and civil 
partnership and pregnancy and maternity not currently listed). 
 
Q10. Is there sufficient reference to the use of social media?  
 

o Yes    
o No   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q10a. Should social media be covered in a separate code or integrated into the overall 
code of conduct?  
 

o Separate code   
o Integrated into the code   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q10b. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how the 
use of social media is covered in the code please do so here:  
 
It may be helpful to provide guidance as to whether inappropriate / offensive use / content of 
a social media account, in a private capacity would engage the code. 
 
Registration and declarations of interests        
 
The law at present requires, as a minimum, registration and declaration of ‘Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests’ - that is matters which directly relate to the councillor and their partner if 
applicable.   
 
The LGA is proposing that all councillors are required to declare interests where matters also 
relate to or affect other family members or associates.  The LGA has broadened the 
requirement to declare interests beyond this current statutory minimum in line with a 
recommendation from the Committee on Standards in Public Life.  These specific provisions 
are set out in Appendix B of the Code.  
  
Q11. To what extent do you support the code going beyond the current requirement to 
declare interests of the councillor and their partner?  
 

o To a great extent   
o To a moderate extent   
o To a small extent   
o Not at all   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
 Q11a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here: 
 

Page 20



AS200729 – LGA CoC 
 

[This Council retained the provisions under the old national Code which related to the 
interests of a “relevant person” which this new model seeks to reintroduce].  
  
Q12. Should the requirement to declare interests be in the main body of the code or in 
the appendix where the draft model code currently references it?  
 

o In the main body of the code  
o In the appendix   
o Other (please specify below)   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q12a. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how the 
requirement to declare interests is covered in the code please do so here:  
 
It is suggested that this is within the main body of the code, under paragraph 10.  
  

 
It is also suggested that more outside interests should be registered than is the current 
statutory minimum. These are set out in Table 2 of the Appendix and are designed to 
demonstrate to the community transparency about other bodies with which the councillor is 
engaged.  
  
Q13. To what extent do you support the inclusion of these additional categories for 
registration?   
 

 To a 
great 
extent 

To a 
moderate 
extent 

To a 
small 
extent 

Not at all Don't 
know / 
Prefer not 
to say 

Any organisation, 
association, society or party 
of which you are a member 
or in a position of general 
control or management and 
to which you are appointed 
or nominated by the council   

     

Any organisation, 
association, society or party 
that exercises functions of a 
public nature of which you 
are a member or in a 
position of general control or 
management   

     

Any organisation, 
association, society or party 
directed to charitable 
purposes   

     

Any organisation, 
association, society or party 
of whose principal purposes 
includes the influence of 
public opinion or policy 
(including any political party 
or trade union)   

     

 
Q13a. If you would like to propose additional or alternative categories for registration, 
please provide them here:  
 

Page 21



AS200729 – LGA CoC 
 

[This Council retained the provisions under the old national Code which includes all of the 
above categories].  
  
Q14. To what extent to you support the proposed requirement that councillors do not 
accept significant gifts as set out in Obligation 11?  
 

o To a great extent   
o To a moderate extent  
o To a small extent   
o Not at all   
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q14a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:  
 
It would be helpful to have a definition of “significant”.  See Q5 above.  
  
Q15. The draft code proposes £25 as the threshold for registering gifts and 
hospitality. Is this an appropriate threshold?  
 

o Yes   
o Yes, but the amount should be reviewed annually with the code’s review   
o No, it should be lower (please specify amount) ____________________  
o No, it should be higher (please specify amount) ___________________  
o Don't know/prefer not to say   

  
Q16. The LGA will be producing accompanying guidance to the code. Which of the 
following types of guidance would you find most useful? Please rank 1-5, with 1 being 
the most useful.  
 
__5___ Regularly updated examples of case law  
__3___ Explanatory guidance on the code  
__1___ Case studies and examples of good practice  
__4___ Supplementary guidance that focuses on specific areas, e.g., social media  
__2___ Improvement support materials, such as training and e-learning packages  
  
Q16a. If you would like to suggest any other accompanying guidance please do so 
here:  
 
An initial focus on appropriate use of social media would be useful.  
 
Q17. If you would like to make any further comments about the code please so here:   
  
 

Page 22



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

Rother District Council                                                     
 
Report to:   Audit and Standards Committee 

Date:    29 July 2020 

Title:    Treasury Management Report – 2019/20 Outturn 

Report of:   Antony Baden – Finance Manager 

 
Purpose of Report: to agree the Council’s treasury activities outturn for the 

financial year ending 31 March 2020 
 
Decision Type: Non-Key 
 
Officer Recommendations: the report be noted 
 

 
Introduction  
 
1. Cabinet approved the Council’s Investment Strategy for 2019/20 on the 10 

February 2020 (Minute CB19/93 refers). The investment strategy requires 
regular reports to be presented to this Committee on the Council’s treasury 
management activities. Members are also reminded that investment activity is 
also reported through the Members’ Bulletin. In managing its treasury 
management activities, the Council follows the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(revised 2017). 

 
2. The CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of 

Practice for Treasury Management recommends that Members be updated on 
treasury management activities regularly. This report, therefore, ensures this 
Council is implementing best practice in accordance with the Code. 
 

3. This report focuses on the financial period ending on 31 March 2020. Treasury 
Management covers two main areas: - 

 
i. The management of day to day cash flows by way of short-term investing 

and borrowing. Longer term investment opportunities may arise depending 
on cashflow requirements. 

 
ii. Management of the Council’s long-term debt portfolio, which is used to 

finance capital expenditure that cannot be immediately funded by internal 
resources (e.g. Capital Receipts). 

 
Financial Investments review 
 
4. The Council currently holds most of its investments in call and deposit accounts 

with the major financial UK institutions.  In addition, it holds investments totalling 
£8 million in Property Funds. 

 
5. As at 31 March 2020 the Council‘s total investments were £23,839m. There was 

£11,984m of borrowing and the Capital Financing requirement was £15,788m. 
 
6. The Council’s investment policy is governed by Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government investment guidance, which has been 
implemented in the approved annual investment strategy. This policy sets out 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

the approach for choosing investment counterparties and is based on credit 
ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by 
additional market data, (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share 
prices etc.). 

 
7. The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy and 

the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 
 
8. The total income from investments was £508,000 (subject to audit) with an 

average rate of return on investments of 1.76%. 
 
9. The investment portfolio as at the 31 March 2020 is shown in the table below: - 
 

 
 
Borrowing 
 
10. The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which gauges the Council’s 
indebtedness. The CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and 
resources used to pay for the capital spend. It represents prior years and the 
2019/20 unfinanced capital expenditure, which has not been paid for by revenue 
or other resources. 

 
11. Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for 

the borrowing need. The Treasury service organises the Council’s cash position 
to ensure that enough cash is available to meet capital plans and cash flow 
requirements. To date this has been sourced via a combination of borrowing from 
the Government, through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and utilising 
temporary cash resources within the Council. 

 
12. The Council’s CFR is not allowed to rise indefinitely. Statutory controls ensure 

that capital assets are broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset. To 
this end, the Council has made an annual revenue charge, called the Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the CFR. This is effectively a repayment of 
borrowing. External debt can be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does 
not change the CFR. 

 
13. The total expenditure and funding of the Capital Programme for 2019/20 is 

summarised in the following table: 
  

Deposit
Type of 

account

Maturity 

Date
Amount £

Interest 

Rate
Share %

Lloyds - General (RFB) Call N/A 12,835,768 0.00% 53.84%

Lloyds - (RFB) Fixed 24/04/2020 2,000,000 1.25% 8.39%

Lloyds - (RFB) Fixed 08/05/2020 1,000,000 1.25% 4.19%

Bank of Scotland (RFB) Call N/A 6 0.65% 0.00%

Bank of Scotland 32 Days Notice N/A 0 0.90% 0.00%

Barclays - Call Account (NRFB) Call N/A 1,066 0.45% 0.00%

Santander - 31 Day Notice Account 31 Days Notice N/A 1,655 0.55% 0.01%

CCLA Local Authority Property 

Fund
Long Term N/A

5,000,000 4.42% 20.97%

HERMES Property Fund Long Term N/A 2,999,998 3.01% 12.58%

Total 23,838,492 100.00%

Total managed in-house 15,838,494

Total managed externally 7,999,998

Total Treasury Investments 23,838,492

Page 24



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

 
 

 2019/20 
Original 
Budget 
£ (000) 

2019/20  
Revised 
Budget 
£ (000) 

2019/20 
Draft 

Outturn 
£ (000) 

 
Capital Expenditure 
 

 
21,205 

 
17,245 

 
14,173 

 
Financing: 
Capital Receipts 

Grants and Contributions 

Borrowing 

Capital Expenditure 
Charged to Revenue 

 
 

1,930 

3,847 

13,758 

1,670 

 
 

415 

2,859 

13,313 

658 

 
 

0 

1,697 

12,060 

416 

 
Total Funding 
 

 
21,205 

 
17,245 

 
14,173 

 
14. The capital programme included new borrowing in 2019/20 of £12.060m and this 

increased the Council’s CFR for the year as shown below: 
 

 2019/20 
Original 
Budget 
£ (000) 

2019/20  
Revised 
Budget 
£ (000) 

2019/20 
Draft 

Outturn 
£ (000) 

Opening Balance 

Add unfinanced capital 
expenditure 

Less Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) 

3,650 

16,136 

 

(156) 

3,757 

13,313 

 

(91) 

3,757 

12,060 

 

(29) 

 
Closing Balance 
 

 
19,630 

 
16,979 

 
15, 788 

 
15. At 31 March 2020, the Council‘s actual borrowing position was as follows: 
 

Borrowing position as at the 31 March 2020 

PWLB Ref: Amount o/s Interest 
Rate 

Term Type Full Year 
Repayments 

507499 

507503 

509130 

509131 

509165 

£443,243 

£443,223 

£1,641,250 

£1,000,000 

£8,451,646 

2.59% 

2.58% 

2.39% 

2.24% 

2.48% 

50 

50 

50 

50 

50 

Annuity 

Annuity 

Annuity 

Maturity 

Annuity 

£16,102 

£16,070 

£56,729 

£22,400 

£297,572 

Total Borrowing £11,979,362    £408,873 

 

Page 25



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

 

16. Borrowing activity is controlled by prudential indicators for gross borrowing and 
the CFR, and by the authorised limit. The authorised limit is the “affordable 
borrowing limit” required by Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003. Once 
this has been set, the Council does not have the power to borrow above this 
level. The table below demonstrates that during 2019/20 the Council maintained 
gross borrowing within its authorised limit. 

 
Treasury Indicators 2019/20  

Budget 
£ (000) 

Actual as at  
31 March 2020 

£ (000) 

Authorised Limit for External Debt  

Operational boundary for External Debt 

57,400 

52,000 

57,400 

52,000 

Gross External Debt (actual) 

Investments 

12,488 

(22,096) 

11,980 

(23,839) 

Net Borrowing/(Investments) (9,608) (11,859) 

   
 
17. The operational boundary represents the expected borrowing position of the 

Council during the year. Periods where the actual position is either below or over 
the boundary are acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached. 

 
18. The actual financing costs as a proportion of the net revenue stream identifies 

how much of the Council’s income is required to service the cost of its overall 
debt. The draft 2019/20 out turn shows as a minus figure because the Council 
received more in investment income than it paid out in interest. 

 

 
Prudential 
Indicators 

2019/20 
Original 
Budget 
£ (000) 

2019/20 
Draft 

Outturn 
£ (000) 

Capital Expenditure Charged to Revenue 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

Annual Change in CFR 

In-Year Borrowing Requirements 

Ratio of Financing costs to Net Revenue Stream % 

1,670 

19,630 

15,980 

12,488 

0.53% 

416 

15,788 

12,031 

11,980 

-1.55% 

 
19. The Council maintained an under-borrowed position this year, which means that 

the CFR was not fully funded with loan debt. Instead the Council managed its 
cash flow by using reserves and balances. This strategy is prudent because 
investment returns have remained low and the counterparty risk associated with 
placing investments is minimised. 

 
Non-Treasury Investments 
 
20. The Council invested in the economic regeneration of Rother through its Property 

Investment Strategy (PIS) and the draft income out turn from these non-Treasury 
Investments is as follows: 
 

 

Page 26



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

 
 
21. In addition to the above properties, the Council has also purchased a property in 

Barnhorn Green, which should bring in further rental income in the future. 
 
22. The Council has not made any further property purchases since the last report 

to Audit and Standards Committee on the 18 May 2020. The budget for rental 
income from all investment properties was £1,939,750, made up of £975,670 for 
the existing assets and £964,080 for properties purchased through the property 
investment strategy. The draft outturn for 2019/20 is £1,689,786, which is a 
shortfall of £249,964. The draft outturn equates to a gross return of 5.72% on the 
value of all properties including those purchased under PIS. After allowing for 
borrowing costs the draft return on PIS properties generated an expected return 
of 2.71%. 

 
New CIPFA Guidance 
 
23. A review of the CIPFA guidance in conjunction with the relevant underlying 

legislation shows that the Council has complied with both regarding purchases 
made under the PIS. 

 
Economic impact of the Coronavirus 

 
24. In the final quarter of 2019/20, the Covid-19 pandemic hit the UK and has had a 

severe impact across all sectors on an unprecedented worldwide basis. Global 
markets have taken a huge hit and the impact on all main indices shows varying 
degrees of decline in economic activity. So whilst not impacting the outturn for 
2019/20, there are implications for the Council’s treasury activities in the current 
financial year.  

 
25. In the UK the positive economic data indications previously reported to Members 

have since been negated by the effects of the virus. The final Quarter 1 reading 
showed that Gross Domestic Product (the total value of goods and services 
produced) fell by 2.2% with all sectors of the economy taking a hit as the effects 
of lockdown began to take hold. April showed a huge drop of 20.4% and the 
Council’s Treasury Management advisors, LINK Asset Services, have indicated 
that a dramatic drop of between 15-20% can be expected in Quarter 2 despite 
some evidence of an economic recovery during May and June. 

 
26. The Consumer Price Index inflation has reduced further from the 1.1% last 

reported to Members to 0.5%. Rates are expected to remain very low for the 
foreseeable future. 

Property

Rental 

Income

MRP & 

Interest Net Income

£ £ £

14 Terminus Road 106,000 (31,793) 74,207

18-40 Beeching Road 88,084 (28,595) 59,489

16 Beeching Road 96,419 (31,301) 65,118

Glovers House 392,128 0 392,128

Market Square, Battle 56,240 0 56,240

Total 738,871 (91,689) 647,182

2019/20 Estimated Property Investment Income

Page 27



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

 
27. Longer-term economic forecasts have been somewhat volatile as economists try 

to assess whether the economic recovery is going to be a ‘V’ shaped one, 
indicating an immediate bounce back, or whether it is likely to be more drawn 
out. Levels of uncertainty are further fuelled by fears of a second wave although 
scientific breakthroughs in terms of a vaccine would obviously have a much more 
positive effect. 

 
28. The UK Government has pumped huge sums of money into the economy to 

support local authorities, business, individuals and several other sectors of the 
economy. To date the Council has received over £1.7 million of additional funding 
in response to the crisis and has also paid out £24.5 million in support grants to 
small businesses. 

 
Other Economic Updates 

 
29. As reported in the February update to Members, the UK formally left the EU on 

the 31 January 2020 and we are now in a transition period during which 
discussions have taken place over trading terms. The UK Government remains 
insistent that it wants to agree a deal by the end of 2020, but they have relaxed 
their position in terms of agreeing a broad outline by the end of June. However, 
although talks are continuing both parties have acknowledged that ‘significant 
differences’ still exist, thus making the prospect of a ‘no deal’ ever more likely. 

 
30. On the 11 March 2020, Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) 

voted to cut the base interest rate from 0.25% to 0.1% in order to mitigate the 
economic impact of the Coronavirus. This introduces the possibility of negative 
interest rates in the future, which would have a detrimental impact on cash 
balances held by the Council. The MPC also increased the quantitative easing 
programme by a further £100 billion to £745 billion. We will continue to take 
advice from LINK Asset Services regarding base rate forecasts as they could be 
subject to further changes arising from Brexit trade deal negotiations and other 
global events. 

 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
31. The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy and 

the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 
 
32. The investment environment for treasury activities remained difficult and was 

further exacerbated by the uncertainty over Brexit and, to a lesser extent, the 
outbreak of the Coronavirus. Absolute returns remained low and are likely to do 
so for the foreseeable future. The diversification into Property Funds increased 
the net overall return, but it is less liquid and carries greater capital risk than other 
investments. 

 
33. The Council’s PIS focused on regeneration and generated net returns in excess 

of 2%, which is greater than treasury investments. Again, this carries greater risk 
due to the long-term commitment to repay borrowing and the operational risks of 
managing property. 

 
Implications 
 
Financial Implications 
As detailed in the report 

Page 28



AS200729 – Treasury Management Report  
 

 
Legal Implications 
None 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Other Implications 
 
 

Other Implications Applies? Other Implications Applies? 

Human Rights Yes/No Equalities and Diversity Yes/No 

Crime and Disorder Yes/No Consultation Yes/No 

Environmental Yes/No Access to Information Yes/No 

Sustainability Yes/No Exempt from publication Yes/No 

Risk Management Yes/No   

 

Executive Director: Malcolm Johnston and Dr Anthony Leonard 

Proper Officer:  

Report Contact 
Officer: 

Antony Baden 

e-mail address: Antony.baden@rother.gov.uk  

Appendices:  

Relevant Previous 
Minutes: 

 

Background Papers: None  

Reference 
Documents: 

None  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



AS200729 – Draft Statement of Accounts 
 

Rother District Council                                                      
 
Report to:     Audit and Standards 
 
Date:                        29 July 2020 
 
Title:  Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
 
Report of:   Anthony Baden – Finance Manager 
 
Purpose of Report: This report asks Members to note the draft Statement of 

Accounts ahead of the external audit and discusses the main 
issues affecting the Statement and provides a commentary on 
the core financial statements.   

 
Officer 
Recommendation(s): It be RESOLVED: That the Council’s draft 2019/20 Statement 

of Accounts be noted. 

 

 

Introduction 
 

1. This report discusses the main issues affecting the Council’s draft Statement of 
Accounts 2019/20 and provides a commentary on the core financial statements.  
(The full Statement will be circulated separately to Members, when available.) At 
the time of writing this report, the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, were 
in the early stages of their work on the accounts for 2019/20.  Grant Thornton will 
report on the outcome of their work later in the year in line with the revised national 
timescales.  The draft accounts include the Annual Governance Statement 
approved by the Committee at its meeting on 18 May 2020 (Minute AS AS19/51 
refers), which in accordance with the Committee resolution has been updated for 
the impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s finances. 

 
Changes to the Format of the Statement of Accounts 

 

2. The Code of Practice has required no major changes in the presentation of the 
accounts. 

  
Statement of Accounts (circulated separately) 

 

3. Detailed below is a brief description of the core financial statements and the issues 
relating to them. 

 

4. Movement in Reserves Statement – this shows the movement in the year on the 
different reserves held by the authority, analysed into “useable reserves” (i.e. those 
that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and un-useable 
reserves such as the revaluation reserve for land and property.  The deficit of 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



AS200729 – Draft Statement of Accounts 
 

£2.428m on the provision of services line shows the true economic cost of 
providing the authority’s services, and these are shown in greater detail in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  These are different from the 
statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council 
Tax setting. The net change of £2.392m before transfers to Earmarked Reserves 
line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers 
to earmarked reserves is made by the Council.  

 

5. Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this shows the Council’s 
actual financial performance for the year, measured in terms of the resources 
consumed and generated over the last 12 months.  It therefore does not show the 
“cash” position for the Council and is intended to reflect private sector accounting 
practice in presenting a profit and loss account. 

 
6. Balance Sheet – this is fundamental to the understanding of the Council's year-

end financial position.  It shows the balances and reserves at the Council's disposal 
and its long-term indebtedness, the net current assets employed in its operations 
and summarised information on the fixed assets held.  The net worth of the Council 
has increased by £15.2m (as shown in the total reserves line).   

 

7. The Balance Sheet also highlights that the overall amount of useable cash 
resources of the Council have increased by £0.6m. However useable reserves 
have reduced by £2.4m. A detailed analysis of the Council’s earmarked reserves 
is shown in the notes to the accounts.  

 

8. The Pension Fund liability of £17.85m shown in the Balance Sheet is a long term 
financial assessment of a possible shortfall on the Fund, based on the current 
situation and performance.  As such, no immediate action is required to manage 
the deficit. 

 
9. Cash Flow Statement – this brings together in a single statement the inflows and 

outflows of cash arising from the Council's transactions with third parties for 
revenue, investment and capital purposes. Under International Financial Reporting 
Standards the statement only reflects those flows of funds directly related to the 
Council. Where the Council acts as an agent, as in the case of collecting the 
Council Tax on behalf of precepting authorities, these inflows and outflows of cash 
are excluded.  

 
10. Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account – this reflects a statutory 

requirement for the Council, which collects the local taxes, to maintain a separate 
account in relation to Business Rates and the Council Tax and their distribution.  
Overall the Collection Fund balance was in surplus for the year by (£1.9m).  With 
the introduction of the Business Rate Retention Scheme in April 2013, this balance 
is now made up of both Council Tax and Business Rates. For Council Tax the 
Fund was in surplus by (£0.471m) as at 31 March 2020, with East Sussex County 
Council entitled to the majority of this amount.  For business rates the Fund was in 
surplus by (£1.452m), with the Government receiving the highest amount followed 
by this Council.  

Page 32



AS200729 – Draft Statement of Accounts 
 

 
Conclusion 
 

11. The Balance Sheet shows that overall the financial position of the Authority 
remains sound with an adequate amount of reserves in place to meet short term 
needs. The COVID-19 pandemic looks likely to exacerbate the financial pressure 
on the Council in the current financial year. It is therefore essential that in the 
medium term, the Council continues to deliver the target savings set out in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy in order for the Council to continue to balance its 
budget.   

 

Implications 
 
Financial Implications 
12. None arising from this report. 

 
Legal Implications 
13. None arising from this report. 

 
Human Resources Implications 
14. None arising from this report. 

 
Other Implications 
 

Other Implications Applies? Other Implications Applies? 

Human Rights Yes/No Equalities and Diversity Yes/No 

Crime and Disorder Yes/No Consultation Yes/No 

Environmental Yes/No Access to Information Yes/No 

Sustainability Yes/No Exempt from publication Yes/No 

Risk Management Yes/No   

 

Executive Director: Malcolm Johnson and Dr Anthony Leonard 

Proper Officer: Robin Vennard  

Report Contact 
Officer: 

Antony Baden 

e-mail address: Antony.baden@rother.gov.uk 

Appendices: A – Statement of Accounts 

Relevant Previous 
Minutes: 

 

Background Papers: None  

Reference 
Documents: 

Local Government Accounting Code of Practice 2019/20 and 
associated guidance 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2020 – 2021 

DATE OF 
COMMITTEE 

 
SUBJECT 

 

Wednesday 
29 July 2020 

Part A – Standards Reports 

 LGA Consultation on New Code of Conduct 
 

Part B – Audit Reports 

 Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 Treasury Management Report – 2019/20 Outturn 

Monday 
28 September 2020 

 

Part A – Standards Reports (none scheduled) 
 
Part B – Audit Reports 

 Grant Thornton – Annual Governance Report 2019/20 

 Internal Audit Report to 30 June 2020 

 Internal Audit Plan Update   

 Treasury Management Report 

 Risk Management Update 

Monday 
7 December 2020 

 

Part A – Standards Reports 

 Code of Conduct Complaints Monitoring 

 Local Government Ombudsman Complaints Monitoring and 

Annual Review 2019-2020 

 LGA Model Code of Conduct 

 
Part B – Audit Reports 

 Grant Thornton – Annual Audit Letter 2019-20 

 Internal Audit Report to 30 September 2020 

 Internal Audit Plan Update  

 Risk Management Update - TBC 

 Treasury Management Report 

Monday 
22 March 2021 

 

Part A – Standards Reports (none scheduled) 
 
Part B – Audit Reports 

 Grant Thornton – Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 

 Grant Thornton – External Audit Plan 2020-21  

 Internal Audit Report to 31 December 2020 

 Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 

 Review of Internal Audit 2020-21 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Annual Property Investment Update 

 Treasury Management Update 

 Accounting Policies 2020-21 

 Annual Risk Management Update 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 Appointment of the Audit Independent Person – post recruitment process 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Local Government Association (LGA) - Model Member Code of Conduct - consultation
	Appendix 1
	Introduction
	LGA guidance and recommendations
	Appendices

	Appendix 2

	6 Treasury Management Report - 2019/20 Outturn
	7 Statement of Accounts 2019/20
	Financial Report and Statement of Accounts 2019/20

	8 Work Programme

